
 
 

Regular Meeting of the (Retiring) Board of Education 
To be held at The Administration Center 

1001 Leicester Rd. | Elk Grove Village, IL 60007 
Monday, April 29, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M.​ – President, Janice Krinsky 

2.0 ROLL CALL​ –  Secretary, Dr. Tim Burns 

3.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
4.0 COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
5.0 CONSENT AGENDA 

5.01  Approval of Minutes - Prior Meetings 

a.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

b.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 

c.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2019 

d.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2019 

e.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2019 

f.   Closed Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2019 

5.02  Human Resource Report 

a. Administrator Contract 

b. Certified Contracts 

c. Certified Retirement 

d. Certified Resignation 

e. Non-Negotiated Contract 

6.0 ACTION ITEMS 
6.01 Approval of Changes to Board Policies Recommended by IASB Press 

Update #100  

6.02 Approval of Board Policy Changes Recommended by Administration and 

the Board of Education 
a.   Policy - 2:140  - Communications To and From the Board 

b.   Policy - 2:100 - Board Member Conflict of Interest 
c.   ​Policy - 7:300 - Extracurricular Athletics 
d.   ​Policy - 8:30 - Visitors to and Conduct on School Property 

6.03 Approval of Ridge Intersession Fees   Summary 

6.04  Food Service Contract Renewal for 2019/20 Lunch and Breakfast 

Programs  

 6.05 Approval of District-Wide Copier Lease Solution  
6.06 Approval of 3 year Contract for Natural Gas  

7.0 DISCUSSION 
7.01  Elk Grove Village Technology Park TIF  

 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1G5HLBXhkbDFdY3MIHYCfNZpfweuHtxenMpaNMSW0yqY/edit#heading=h.v5iu1tu93ssk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1cXl9dmXFdyeCBzzwbNkbyDazI75RblRjcS0jTOGFSnQ/edit
https://drive.google.com/file/d/12rLU76246KM4OnrauZ5gjOY6Br-ZEAID/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1_jVJ0vFyx86Fs7msnhjw9ZHth6xeC-LerAGH7TLSUTY/edit?usp=sharing


 

8.0 NEW/CONTINUING BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Recognition of Retiring Members of the Board of Education 

9.0 ADJOURNMENT SINE DIE 

Individuals who require special accommodations because of a  
disability should contact the Educational Services Department at 847.593.4335. 

There will be a Special Organizational Meeting of the Board of Education 
 immediately following this regular meeting.  

The next regular meeting of the Board of Education will be held on  
May 13, 2019 at the District 59 Administration Center, 

1001 Leicester Road, Elk Grove Village, IL 60007  
www.CCSD59.org  

School District 59-Preparing Students to be Successful for Life 

http://www.ccsd59.org/






Board Meeting – ​04/29/2019 
Item No. ​2.0 

  
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
Roll Call​:  
 Meeting of Monday, April 29, 2019 
 

 



 







 
 

Board Meeting – 04/29/19 
Item No.​ 5.0 

Page 1 
 

  
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION: CONSENT AGENDA 
Background 
A consent agenda consists of items that are, by general agreement, acceptable to all              
Board Members without discussion and can be approved by a single vote. The Consent              
Agenda shall include items of a routine nature on which the Board of Education has               
received sufficient background information to take action on the items presented for            
approval. Typically, the following routine items are included as part of a Consent Agenda:              
1) minutes; 2) bills for payment; 3) periodic reports; 4) personnel; and 5) resolutions that               
are adopted annually. 
If any member of the Board of Education requests removal of any item from the Consent                
Agenda or a member of the public requests to speak on a Consent Agenda Item, then that                 
item shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and become the first item under the               
Action Agenda Item Section of the agenda. If an item is so removed from the Consent                
Agenda and added to the Action Agenda, then with respect to those items only, the Board                
of Education may take such action as it deems appropriate including the right to vote               
thereon. 
Recommendation 
Approval of the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Resolution  
Motion was made by ___________________, seconded by ____________________ to 
adopt the following resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 29th day of April, 2019, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve the Consent Agenda           
as presented/amended: 
5.01  Approval of Minutes - Prior Meetings 

a.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 
b.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 
c.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2019 
d.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2019 
e.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2019 
f.   Closed Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2019 

5.02  Human Resource Report 
a. Administrator Contract 
b. Certified Contracts 
c. Certified Retirement 
d. Certified Resignation 
e. Non-Negotiated Contract 

 



 
 

Board Meeting – 04/29/19 
Item No.  5.0 

Page 2 
 

 



 
 

Board Meeting – ​04/29/19 
Item No. ​5.01 

Page 1 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
RESOLUTION: APPROVAL OF MINUTES - PRIOR MEETINGS 

Background 
Minutes become the official and legal record of the acts and deliberations of the Board               
of Education. They reach this status on approval by the Board of Education completed              
during open session at a school board meeting. 
Recommendation 
Minutes should be approved as presented or amended by Board action. 
Resolution 
Motion made by ​___________________________​, seconded by  
___________________________​ to adopt the following resolution: 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 29th day of April 2019 the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve the minutes of the            
following meetings (as presented/amended) by Board action: 
5.01 Approval of Minutes-Prior Meetings 

a.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 
b.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 8, 2019 
c.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2019 
d.  Closed Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2019 
e.  Regular Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2019 
f.   Closed Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Board Meeting – ​04/29/19 
Item No. ​5.01 

Page 2 
 

 
 

 



BoadMinutes ​04/08/2019 
Item – ​5.01(a.)  

Page 1 

Official Minutes of the Special Board of Education Meeting  
Held on Monday, April 8, 2019 

 
Call to Order The Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59          

in County of Cook, State of Illinois, held a special meeting in            
accordance with provisions of the Open Meetings Act, according to          
Illinois law, at the District 59 Administration Center, 1001 Leicester Rd.,           
Elk Grove Village, Illinois on April 8, 2019. The meeting was called to             
order at 7:00 PM.  

 
Roll Call Members Present: President Janice Krinsky, Vice President Karen        

Osmanski | Members - Secretary Pro Tem Sunil Bhave, Sharon          
Roberts, Mardell Schumacher, and Barbara Somogyi  
 
Members Absent: ​Dr. Tim Burns 

 
A scanned copy of the Guest Sign-In Sheets from April 8, 2019 is             
attached to minutes of this meeting (Attachment #1). 

Pledge of ​ ​Allegiance  
 

3.0 COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
Mary Vicars ​addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the recent 
election and the Superintendent’s evaluation​.   A copy of her address was 
submitted to be included in the minutes (Attachment #2) 
Sandy Stewart ​addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the 
Superintendent’s evaluation​. 
Leo Cox ​addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the 
Superintendent’s evaluation​. 
Lynn Ann Oberg read a speech about the Superintendent’s evaluation 
written by Julee Martensen. 
Patti Petrielli ​addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the 
Superintendent’s evaluation​. 

 
4.0 CLOSED SESSION 

 
MOTION at 7:20  p.m. by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 8th day of April 2019, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education recess in a closed           
meeting for ​discussion of “the appointment, employment,       
compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific       



BoadMinutes ​04/08/2019 
Item – ​5.01(a.)  

Page 2 

employees of the public body”,  -5ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) of the Open             
Meetings Act.  

Roll Call Ayes:       6    Bhave, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher, and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      1 Burns 
Abstain:     0  

Motion carried:  6-0-1-0 

 
5.0 RECONVENE 

 
MOTION at 10.21 p.m. by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 8th day of April 2019, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is 
reconvened.   
 

Roll Call Ayes:       6    Bhave, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher, and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:     1 Burns 
Abstain:     0  

Motion carried:  6-0-1-0 
OPEN SESSION 

The Board discussed whether it should enact a policy regarding Board 
Members being compensated by the District by working for the District 
while serving as an elected Board Member. 
 
The Board also discussed the distractions caused during meetings when 
Board Members use their phones and laptops to communicate 
electronically. 
 
It was suggested that the Board utilize the services of the District’s 
attorneys to assist in drafting new policies for discussion at the April 15, 
2019 Board meeting. 
 
Mrs. Mardell Schumacher left the meeting at 10:27 p.m. 

 
6.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION at 10:35 p.m. by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 



BoadMinutes ​04/08/2019 
Item – ​5.01(a.)  

Page 3 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 8th of April 2019, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is 
adjourned 

Roll Call Ayes:       5    Bhave,Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, and Somogyi  
Nays:       0  
Absent:      2 Burns and Schumacher 
Abstain:     0  

 
 

Motion carried:  5-0-2-0 
Meeting adjourned at 10:35 p.m. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BoadMinutes ​04/08/2019 
Item – ​5.01(a.)  

Page 4 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 
 

 
 



BoadMinutes ​04/08/2019 
Item – ​5.01(a.)  

Page 5 

ATTACHMENT #2 
 

 



 





 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 2 

4.0 STUDENT CELEBRATIONS  
Byrd Elementary School 
Phil’s Friends 
Admiral Byrd Dual Language (DL) students in 4th and 5th grade presented to the 

board with DL teachers Mrs. Czajkowski & Mrs. Esparza about their support of 

Phil’s Friends, a nonprofit group helping individuals with cancer. The students 

discussed what they learned from the partnership and the feeling of pride they 

have from the participating in this experience.   

Trex Recycling 
As part of an annual project assigned to Byrd fifth grade Talent Development 

Program (TDP) students, students presented with TDP teacher Mrs. Toulon 

about their solution to a community problem. This year’s project help to inform 

the Elk Grove community how to recycle properly.  

 

Rupley Student Celebration  
Rupley Principal Diana O’Donnell presented a celebration of a Rupley student, 
Julian, who has used assistive technology to advance his communication ​skills 
with others.  Julian won the Infinitec North Award Recognition 2019 Outstanding 
Student Technology Award. 

 
5.0 DISCUSSION 

5.01  Classroom Projector Refresh 
This summer, CCSD59 is scheduled to begin the process of refreshing the                       

classroom projectors across the district. This will be a multi-year project, and the                         

costs are included in the long term budget and technology plan. The current                         

classroom projectors range in age from eight to twelve years old. The board will                           

continue to discuss the project at the next board of education meeting.  
 
5.02​  ​Approval of 3 Year Contract for Natural Gas Summary 

The current contract at CCSD59 for natural gas expires on June 30, 2019. A 
Request For Proposal (RFP) was sent to eight providers and the district received 
three responses. To help prevent large cost variances created by the fluctuating 
market, the district asked vendors to provide fixed pricing for part or all of the 
natural gas costs. 
 
Centerpoint Energy provided a quote at a fixed rate of -$0.006 per therm basis 
and $0.269 per therm for 50% of the district’s anticipated usage for 36 months. 
This combination of fixed and floating rates protects the district from extreme 
price variances while also taking advantage of price drops. Since Centerpoint is 
CCSD59’s current provider, the district would not need to incur any additional 
expenses for changing providers. The Administration is recommending that the 
district continue with Centerpoint Energy as their natural gas provider. 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 3 

 
The board will vote on approval of the contract at the May 13, 2019, board 
meeting. 
 

5.03 ​ ​A​pproval of Ridge Intersession Fees Summary 
The Ridge Family Center for Learning offers an intersession program to 
elementary students as a fee-based option, with fees covering the direct operating 
costs of the programming provided. The 2019-20 Ridge balanced calendar 
provides for two intersessions: September 30 - October 9, 2019 (8 days); and 
March 30 - April 3, 2020 (5 days). 
 
The board discussed the following fee arrangements for intersession 2019-20: 

Intersession     2019-20 Fee         2018-19 Fee 

Sep/Oct          (8 days) $160      (8 days) $160 

Mar/Apr          (5 days) $100       (5 days) $100 

5.04  ​Press Policy Update 100  
 

The board discussed the Illinois Association of School Boards suggested 

revisions for February and March 2019 via their ​PRESS publication ​. 
 

5.05  ​New Board Policies 
The board discussed proposed changes (additions) to board policies for the 
topics listed below.  The administration sought recommendations for language 
changes/additions from the district’s attorney. 

a. Board Members Employed by the District and Receiving  Compensation 
b. Cell Phone Use During Board Meetings 

 
5.06 Food Service Contract Renewal for 2019-20 Lunch and Breakfast  

School year 2019-20 represents the third renewal for the District’s food service 
management company, Organic Life.  State law allows the District to renew a 
contract four times before a District is required to bid the service.  The current 
Contract was approved by the Board of Education on May 29, 2018 effective 
for 2018-19 (Year 3).  The District will be required to bid food service effective 
for the 2021-22 school year; however, a bid will be necessary should there be 
an operational change in the program. 
 
No operational changes have been requested for the 2019-20 school year for 
the existing lunch program.  The reimbursable lunch and the a la carte 
equivalent rates will increase from $2.8668 to $2.9212 per meal.  This increase 
is based on the allowable CPI of 1.9%.  There is no annual management fee for 
lunch or the junior high a la carte program. 
 
 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Koj0M1GHqZB0GagbjiD8XQHh5xq7vRc_/view


 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 4 

Regarding the breakfast program, the Childhood Hunger Relief Act, 
PA093-1086 requires schools that have at least 40% of students eligible for 
free or reduced-price lunches to offer a school breakfast program.  In 2019-20, 
all District 59 schools will continue to offer breakfast programs. 
 
The per meal rates for the breakfast program will increase from $1.2509 to 
$1.2746. There is no annual management fee for breakfast.  
 
Public Act 99-0850 is a breakfast requirement that was implemented July 1, 
2017.  This law requires every public school in which at least 70 percent of the 
students were eligible for free or reduced-price lunches in October of the 
preceding year to operate a Breakfast After the Bell Program. Breakfast After 
the Bell means breakfast is provided to children after the instructional day has 
officially begun and does not prohibit schools from also providing breakfast 
before the instructional day begins. 
 
Starting in 2017-18 Byrd, John Jay and Rupley implemented a Breakfast After 
the Bell program.  The same three schools implemented the program in 
2018-19 and will continue Breakfast After the Bell in 2019-20. 
 
Organic Life continues to be a valuable partner in offering quality school 
nutrition programs to our students.  The District recommends renewal at the 
proposed rates.  

 
 

5.07 Approval of District-Wide Copier Lease Solution 
 

The District currently leases a total of 55 Multi-Function Devices and is in the 
final year of a three-year contract with Konica Minolta.  There are three (3) 
devices at each school which are located in the main office (color), the Learning 
Resource Center (LRC) (color) and the teacher workroom (B&W). The Early 
Learning Center houses one device in the main office and one in the teacher 
workroom and the devices at the Administration Center are located strategically 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 5 

throughout the building and assigned to seven (7) departments.  All printers 
across the District default to B&W, with the option to select color if necessary. 
 
Prior to determining the direction for this purchase, information was gathered 
through satisfaction surveys administered to building principals, LRC techs, 
office managers, and administration building staff. Overall, responses showed a 
high level of satisfaction with the devices and responsiveness of maintenance 
technicians while also illustrating the need for increased copy speed and paper 
capacity in the LRCs. 
 
Konica Minolta extended the opportunity to participate in a proprietary ​One Rate 

Program ​through Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing.  The program eliminates 
per copy costs and charges a fixed monthly rate which includes unlimited 
printing in both black and white and color. 
 
Rates for both 36-month and 48-month contracts were proposed.  After a review 
of the District’s experiences, it was determined that a 36-month contract would 
improve overall productivity and satisfaction.  In addition, the shorter time frame 
permits the District to be more flexible as print needs continue to change.  By 
implementing the Konica Minolta’s ​One Rate Program​ recommended solution 
for 36 months, the District will receive new and improved equipment while 
cutting operating costs by over 13%. 
 
Konica Minolta’s proposed solution meets the needs of the District’s by 
upgrading the devices in the Learning Resource Centers to faster machines with 
larger capacity paper trays.  In addition, staplers would be added to each school 
office, one device in the Administration Building would be eliminated and the 
speed of the copier in the mailroom would be increased to accommodate large 
print jobs.  The proposal includes all equipment, training, toner, staples, delivery, 
maintenance and repair and all parts and supplies are guaranteed to be 
originally manufactured equipment throughout the duration of the contract. 
 
After the District’s experience for the past three (3) years, it was determined that 
Konica Minolta would not only be the best financial option but would also be the 
best strategic partner as the District continues to evaluate and address copy and 
print needs.  It is therefore recommended that the Board of Education approve a 
three-year lease and maintenance agreement with Konica Minolta, 1701 W. Golf 
Road, Rolling Meadows, IL  60008 for 54 multi-functional devices for a monthly 
rate of $23,905.00 for all devices.  The installation and implementation will be 
scheduled to begin on July 1, 2019. 

6.0 COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Mr. Randy Reid of Elk Grove Village thanked Dr. Burns, Mr. Bhave, and Mrs. 
Barbara Somogyi for their service on the Board of Education.  Mr. Reid 
expressed his desire to keep children first during his term on the Board of 
Education.  



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 6 

Mrs. Gloria Schmidt of Arlington Heights thanked Dr. Burns, Mr. Bhave, and 
Mrs. Barbara Somogyi for their service on the Board of Education.  Mrs. Schmidt 
also had questions about a flyer she received inviting her to a for profit Boot 
Camp intended to be hosted at Juliette Low Elementary School.  Dr. Fessler will 
look into this event and provide a written response to Mrs. Schmidt. 
Mrs. Judy Cox - Elk Grove Village thanked Dr. Burns, Mr. Bhave, and Mrs. 
Barbara Somogyi for their service on the Board of Education.  Mrs. Cox also 
commented on the District Curriculum Committee.  A copy of her address will be 
attached to the minutes of this meeting  (Attachment 2). 
Joan Burke - Arlington Heights thanked Dr. Burns, Mr. Bhave, and Mrs. Barbara 
Somogyi for their service on the Board of Education.   Mrs. Burke addressed the 
Board of Education to express concern about for profit organizations requesting 
to use Juliette Low, board members ability to visit schools needing prior notice. 
A copy of her address will be attached to the minutes of this meeting 
(Attachment 3). 
Mary Vicars - Arlington Heights congratulated the newly elected Board of 
Education members.  Mrs. Vicars also addressed the Board of Education on 
several topics including the district’s curriculum, district finances, and the 
superintendent’s evaluation.  A copy of her address will be attached to the 
minutes of this meeting (Attachment 4). 

7.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
Ms. Krinsky informed the Board of an amendment of a title listed in 7.04 (a.). 
Coordinator of ELS Programming / Rupley rather than a Director of ELS Programming / 
Rupley. 
Dr. Burns requested to pull Item 7.03 for discussion. 

Motion by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following resolution: 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 15th day of April 2019, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve the Consent          
Agenda as amended:  

7.0 CONSENT AGENDA 
7.01 Approval of Minutes-Prior Meetings 

a. Regular Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2019 
b Closed Meeting Minutes of March 11, 2019 
c. Special Meeting Minutes of March 18, 2019 
d. Closed Meeting Minutes of March 18, 2019  

  7.02 Disbursements Resolution 
a. Disbursement Listing for 2018-19 

7.03 Acceptance of Financial Reports  
a. Detail Balance Sheet as of February 28, 2019 
b. Combined Revenue and Expense Report as of February 28, 2019 
c. Investment Report as of February 28, 2019 
d. Activity Fund Statements as of February 28, 2019 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 7 

7.04 Acceptance of Recommendations: Human Resources Report 
a. Administrator Contracts 
b. Certified Temporary Contracts 
c. Certified Contract 
d. Certified Retirement 
e. Certified Resignation 
f. ESP Contract 
g. ESP Temporary Contract 
h. ESP Retirement 
i. CAMEO Termination 

7.05 Approval to Destroy 18 Month Old or Older Closed Session Recordings 
7.06 Approval of Release of Certain Closed Session Minutes  

Roll Call Ayes:      7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0 

 
7.03 Acceptance of Financial Reports  
 

Dr. Burns had a question on the Education Fund line item for equipment being 
over budget.   Ms. Nissen explained it was due to some of the technology 
purchases, but no additional funds would be spent from that account this fiscal 
year.  

 
Motion by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Dr. Burns to adopt the following resolution: 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 15th day of April, 2019 the Community Consolidated School               
District 59 Board of Education accept the following Financial Reports: 

7.03 Acceptance of Financial Reports 
a. Detail Balance Sheet as of February 28, 2019 

b. Combined Revenue and Expense Report as of February 28, 2019 
c. Investment Report as of February 28, 2019 
d. Activity Fund Statements as of February 28, 2019 

  

Roll Call Ayes:      7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0 

 
Mr. Ross Vittore shared information about the application process for hiring Assistant 
Principals and introduced Mr. Bill Timmins the new Principal for Friendship Jr. High 
School.    Mr. Timmins thanked the Board of Education and the administration for the 
opportunity to serve as principal at Friendship Jr. High School.  



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 8 

 
 
8.01  Approval of 2019/2020 and 2020/2021 CALENDARS – (Traditional and 

Balanced) 
Motion by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following resolution: 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 15th day of April 2019, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education hereby approves the 
2019/2020 and 2020/2021 school calendars for a total of 198 calendar days. 
 
A copy of the adopted calendar will be attached to the approved minutes of the 
April 15, 2019 school board meeting (Attachment #5). 

Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
Board members asked Mr. Grey to include a question about the start date for 
school in the next parent satisfaction survey.  

 

8.02 Approval of Holidays For 2019/2020 Fiscal Year And For 2020/2021 Fiscal 
Year  

Motion by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 11, 2019 to meet the             
requirement in Section 24-2 of the School Code to designate President’s           
Day for Lincoln’s Birthday holiday and November 27, 2019 and November           
25, 2020 for Veteran’s Day holiday;  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 15th day of April            
2019, the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education,          
in accordance with the provisions of the Illinois School code, designates           
the following days as holidays for negotiated contracts and         
administrative/non-negotiated employees for the 2019/2020 and      
2020/2021 fiscal years:  

 
2019-2020 HOLIDAYS 

 
July 4 Thursday, July 4, 2019 
Labor Day Monday, September 2, 2019 
Columbus Day Monday October 14, 2019 
Veterans Day Observed Wednesday, November 27, 2019 
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 28, 2019 
Day-After Thanksgiving Friday, November 29, 2019 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 9 

Christmas Eve Tuesday, December 24, 2019 
Christmas Day Wednesday, December 25, 2019 
New Year’s Eve Tuesday, December 31, 2019 
New Year’s Day Wednesday, January 1, 2020 
Martin Luther King’s Birthday Monday January 20, 2020 
President’s Day Monday, February 17, 2020 
Memorial Day Monday, May 25, 2020 
Floating Holiday (1) 
 

 
2020-2021 HOLIDAYS 

 
July 4 Observed Friday, July 3, 2020 
Labor Day Monday, September 7, 2020 
Columbus Day Monday October 12, 2020 
Veterans Day Observed Wednesday, November 25, 2020 
Thanksgiving Day Thursday, November 26, 2020 
Day-After Thanksgiving Friday, November 27, 2020 
Christmas Eve Thursday, December 24, 2020 
Christmas Day Friday, December 25, 2020 
New Year’s Eve Thursday, December 31, 2020 
New Year’s Day Friday, January 1, 2021 
Martin Luther King’s Birthday Monday January 18, 2021 
President’s Day Monday, February 15, 2021 
Memorial Day Monday, May 31, 2021 
Floating Holiday (1) 

Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
8.03 �LLNKR=H KB �HKOEJC �=PA BKN ½»¼Ã�¼Ä �?DKKH �A=N 

Motion by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Somogyi to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS ​, the last day of student and staff attendance for the 2018/19 school year                           
will be June 5, 2019 for the traditional calendar and balanced calendars; and 

WHEREAS ​, the official calendars for the 2018/19 school year represent the                     
following: 
The 2018/19 traditional calendar includes the following:   
Five (5) Emergency Days Four (4) School Cancellation Days 
May 31, June 3, 4, 5, 6, 2019 November 26, 2018 & January 28, 30, 31, 
2019 
 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1WAQI_vD6xfoxhFfq5FRYTYJ7AO5vSxO3N13yy7FF328/edit?usp=sharing


 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 10 

The 2018/19 balanced calendar includes the following:   
Five (5) Emergency Days Four (4) School Cancellation Days 
May 31, June 3, 4, 5, 6, 2019 November 26, 2018 & January 28, 30, 31, 
2019 

 
One Hundred Seventy-seven (178) Student Attendance Days 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED on the 15th day of April 2019, the                         
Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve the final                     
school calendars for the 2018/19 school year based upon the following: 178                       
student attendance days and one institute day.  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the last day of attendance for students and staff                           
following the traditional and balanced calendars will be June 5, 2019.  

Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
9.04 �LLNKR=H KB �AJAS=H 	KN �ABQOA��A?U?HEJC �ANRE?A  ​	EJ=H �NKLKO=H 

Motion by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Somogyi to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS ​ Republic Services has provided the required services while demonstrating 
a high level of performance; 
 
WHEREAS ​, Republic Services has provided new rates that do not exceed the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI-U) Annualized Rate for December and has provided the 
required rationale; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED​, on the 15th day of April, 2019, the Board of 
Education of Community Consolidated School District 59 approves the renewal for 
refuse/recycling service with Republic Services, 2101 South Busse Avenue, Mount 
Prospect, Illinois 60056, for the 2019-2020 school year for an approximate monthly 
rate of $4,179.84 or an estimated annual cost of $50,158.08. 

 
Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 

Somogyi  
Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
 
 
 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1lY3ctaZdHtrW0sD3DPM4cWDcAB7tS5hw/view?usp=sharing


 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 11 

 
8.05 Approval of PTAB Authorization to Intervene On Assessment Appeals 
 

Motion by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Somogyi to adopt the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS​, an owner or manager of a parcel or parcels of real property located within 
the  boundaries of the State of Illinois has the right to file an appeal challenging the 
assessed value of a parcel or parcels of real property with the State of Illinois Property 
Tax Appeal Board (“PTAB”); and 

 
WHEREAS​, an appeal before the PTAB seeks a reduction in the assessed value of the 
parcel or parcels; and  

 
WHEREAS​, a reduction in the assessed value of a parcel or parcels granted by the 
PTAB on property located within the boundaries of the Board of Education of 
Community Consolidated School District No. 59 will lead to the issuance of a real 
estate tax refund from the Board; and 

 
WHEREAS​, a taxing district has the right to intervene in proceedings before the PTAB 
in order to protect the taxing districts’ revenue interest in the assessed value of a 
parcel or parcels; and 

 
WHEREAS​, the time period during which a taxing district may intervene is within 60 
days after the taxing district’s receipt, from the local Board of Review, of notice of the 
filing of an appeal by an owner or manager of a parcel or parcels of real property; and 

 
WHEREAS​, the Board has determined that it is necessary, desirable, advantageous, 
and in the public interest to defend the Board’s real property tax base by intervening in 
PTAB appeals filed on parcels within the boundaries of the Board. 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED ​, by the Board of Education of Community 
Consolidated School District No. 59 , Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 
 

1. The Board finds that all of the recitals contained above are true and correct, and 
that the same are hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

 
2. The Board hereby authorizes Franczek Radelet P.C., as its legal representative, to: 

a) file a Request to Intervene in Appeal Proceedings in all 2015-2019 
assessment-year appeals filed at the PTAB for which the Board receives notice 
from the Cook County Board of Review, and b) represent the Board’s interests in 
these proceedings. 

 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 12 

3. All motions and resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this              
Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

4. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held             
invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect             
any of the other sections, paragraphs, clauses, or provisions of this Resolution. 

5. This Resolution shall be in force and effect upon its adoption. 

Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
8.06 �LLNKR=H KB ½»¼Ä�½» �?DKKH �A=N �=U �QO 	AA  

Motion by Mrs. Osmanski, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 15th day of April, 2019 the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education establish the  
2019/20 school year pay bus fee at $361.00  

Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
8.07 �LLNKR=H KB �KJ=PEKJ KB ´¾�»¼»�»» BNKI 
KDJ 
=U ��� PK 
KDJ 
=U �HAIAJP=NU 

�?DKKH 
Motion by Mrs. Schumacher, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 15th day of April, 2019, the Community Consolidated              
School District 59 Board of Education approves the donation of $3,010.00 from the John              
Jay PTO, Mt. Prospect, IL. This donation will be used to purchase student risers for               
John Jay Elementary School. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT with the approval of this donation of $3,010.00, the              
Superintendent shall communicate to the John Jay PTO, in writing, expressing the            
appreciation of the members of the Board of Education, and that this donation shall be               
listed in the “official” minutes of this meeting. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 13 

 
Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 

Somogyi  
Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
8.08 �LLNKR=H KB �TTKJ �K>EH �@Q?=PEKJ �HHE=J?A @KJ=PEKJ KB ´À»»�»» PK �=HP �NAAG 

�HAIAJP=NU �?DKKH 
Motion by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 15th day of April, 2019, the Community Consolidated              
School District 59 Board of Education approves the donation of $500.00 from the Exxon              
Mobil Educational Alliance, P.O. Box 7288, Princeton, NJ 08543-7288. This donation           
will be used to offset the costs for STEAM night and science field trips for Salt Creek                 
Elementary School. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT with the approval of this donation of $500.00, the              
Superintendent shall communicate to the Exxon Mobil Educational Alliance, in writing,           
expressing the appreciation of the members of the Board of Education, and that this              
donation shall be listed in the “official” minutes of this meeting. 

 
Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 

Somogyi  
Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
8.09 �LLNKR=H KB �?DKKH �DKPKCN=LDU �ANRE?AO BKN 	NEAJ@ODEL� 
NKRA =J@ �KHIAO 


QJEKN �ECD �?DKKHO  ​�KJPN=?P 
Motion by Mrs. Roberts, seconded by Mrs. Schumacher to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

WHEREAS ​ proposals were received for school photography services beginning with the 
2019/20 school year; and 
 
WHEREAS ​ Stuart-Rodgers Photography submitted a proposal best meeting the required 
qualifications for Community Consolidated School District 59’s junior highs; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED​, on the 15th day of April, 2019, the Board of 
Education of Community Consolidated School District 59 approves the rates for school 
photography services as found on the attached parent order form.  ​Order Form 

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1q9gRDBHtyuNY4FwoUgqhVQHzCw_Qovwd/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1q9gRDBHtyuNY4FwoUgqhVQHzCw_Qovwd/view?usp=sharing


 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 14 

 
Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 

Somogyi  
Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
Board Consideration of Vendor to Facilitate Strategic Planning and 
Community Engagement 
 
The Strategic Planning Subcommittee recommended three vendors for 
consideration of the board to work on updating CCSD59’s strategic plan.  After 
discussion the came to consensus to recommend the Consortium for Educational 
Change to facilitate the strategic planning process.  
 

 
8.10  ​Approval of Consortium for Educational Change to Facilitate Strategic 

Planning and Community Engagement  
 

The Strategic Planning Subcommittee had recommended three vendors for 
board consideration to work on updating CCSD59’s strategic plan and 
community engagement.  After discussion the Board came to consensus and 
decided to vote on whether to use the Consortium for Educational Change to 
facilitate the strategic planning process.  

Motion by Mr. Bhave, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 15th day of April, 2019 the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approves Consortium of 
Educational Change as the facilitator for Strategic Planning and Community 
Engagement. 

Roll Call Ayes:       5   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts,  
Nays:       2   Schumacher and Somogyi  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
Mrs. Schumacher stated that she did not feel the district needed to hire a 
facilitator to update the strategic plan.  She feels that the board and the district 
can do this work without hiring an outside firm.  
 
The board will continue to hold discussions and determine next steps and scope 
for strategic planning at upcoming board meetings. 
 

 





 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 16 

Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
15.0 RECONVENE SESSION 
MOTION at 11:20 p.m. by Mrs. Somogyi, seconded by Mr. Bhave to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 15th day of April, 2019, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is reconvened.  

Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 
Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

16.0 ADJOURN 
MOTION at 11:21 p.m. by Mrs. Osmanski, seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 15th day of April, 2019, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is adjourned. 

 
Roll Call Ayes:       7   Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher and 

Somogyi  
Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 17 

ATTACHMENT #1  
Sign In Sheets (2) from April 15, 2019 Board of Education Meeting 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 18 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 19 

 
ATTACHMENT #2  

 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 20 

 
ATTACHMENT #3 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 21 

ATTACHMENT #4 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 22 

Attachment 5 - Approved Calendars 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 
 

 

 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 23 

 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 24 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Board Minutes – ​04/15/201 ​9 
Item – ​5.01(c.)  

Page 25 

 

 



 



BoadMinutes ​04/22/2019 
Item – ​5.01(e.)  

Page 1 

Official Minutes of the Special Board of Education Meeting  
Held on Monday, April 22, 2019 

 
Call to Order The Board of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59          

in County of Cook, State of Illinois, held a special meeting in            
accordance with provisions of the Open Meetings Act, according to          
Illinois law, at the District 59 Administration Center, 1001 Leicester Rd.,           
Elk Grove Village, Illinois on April 22, 2019. The meeting was called to             
order at 7:00 PM.  

 
Roll Call Members Present: President Janice Krinsky, Vice President Karen        

Osmanski, Secretary, Members - Sunil Bhave (Secretary Pro Tem),         
Sharon Roberts, Mardell Schumacher, and Barbara Somogyi  
 
Members Absent: ​Dr. Tim Burns  (Dr. Burns arrived at 7:11 p.m.)  

 
A scanned copy of the Guest Sign-In Sheets from April 22, 2019 is             
attached to minutes of this meeting (Attachment #1). 

Pledge of ​ ​Allegiance  
 

3.0 COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
Robert Nauman addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the 
Superintendent’s evaluation. 

Pete Calov addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the 
Superintendent’s evaluation. 

Leo Cox addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the Superintendent’s 
evaluation. 

Mary Vicars ​addressed the Board of Education on the topic of the 
Superintendent’s evaluation ​.   A copy of her address was submitted to be 
included in the minutes (Attachment #2) 

Judy Cox addressed the Board of Education on the topic a Science contest with 
participants from St. Clement Catholic Church. 

Dr. Tim Burns entered the meeting at 7:11 p.m. 
 

4.0 CLOSED SESSION 
 
MOTION at 7:16  p.m. by Mrs. Schumacher seconded by Mrs. Roberts to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 22nd day of April 2019, the Community             
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education recess in a closed           
meeting for ​discussion of “the appointment, employment,       
compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific       



BoadMinutes ​04/22/2019 
Item – ​5.01(e.)  

Page 2 

employees of the public body”,  -5ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) of the Open             
Meetings Act.  

Roll Call Ayes:       7    Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher, 
and Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
5.0 RECONVENE 
MOTION at 8:50 p.m. by Mrs. Robertsi, seconded by Mrs. Osmanski to adopt the 

following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 22nd day of April 2019, the Community 
Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education meeting is 
reconvened.   
 

Roll Call Ayes:       7    Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher, 
and Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
6.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION at 8:55 p.m. by Dr. Burns, seconded by Mr. Bhave to adopt the following 

resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 22nd of April 2019, the 
Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education 
meeting is adjourned 

Roll Call Ayes:       7    Bhave, Burns, Krinsky, Osmanski, Roberts, Schumacher, 
and Somogyi  

Nays:       0  
Absent:      0  
Abstain:     0  

 
Meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 

 
 



BoadMinutes ​04/22/2019 
Item – ​5.01(e.)  

Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BoadMinutes ​04/22/2019 
Item – ​5.01(e.)  

Page 4 

 
ATTACHMENT 1 

 
 
 
 



BoadMinutes ​04/22/2019 
Item – ​5.01(e.)  

Page 5 

 
ATTACHMENT #2 

 



BoadMinutes ​04/22/2019 
Item – ​5.01(e.)  

Page 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
  Board Meeting 04/29/2019 

Item No. 5.02 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

RESOLUTION: HUMAN RESOURCES 
Recommendation 
Approval 
Resolution 
Motion made by ____________________________, seconded by _______________________ that the following resolution be adopted:  
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 29th day of April, 2019 the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education approve the following                                             
Human Resources items: 

 
a. Administrator Contract 
Name Position/Location Salary FTE Effective Replaced 
Michael Wall Principal / Forest View $102,000  1.0 07/01/2019 M. Weickert 
 
b. Certified Contracts 
Name Position/Location Lane Step Salary FTE Effective Replaced 
Patricia Cyran Bilingual / Clearmont MA Step 1 $50,158*  1.0 08/12/2019 
Tracey Villegas Bilingual / TBD MA Step 8 $57,616*  1.0 08/12/2019  

*based on 18-19 salary schedule; to be adjusted upon new collective bargaining agreement 
 
c. Certified Retirement 
Name Position/Location Received Effective 
Kathren Schreck Early Childhood / ELC 04/15/2019 06/06/2019 
 
d. Certified Resignation 
Name Position/Location Received Effective  
Robert Padilla Instructional Coach / Grove 04/22/2019 06/06/2019 
 
e. Non-Negotiated Contract 
Name Position/Location Salary FTE Effective Replaced 
Nicole Hansen Coordinator of Purchasing/School Nutrition​/​Admin Building $60,000  1.0 07/01/2019 J. Fisher 



 

 







 
 
 

Board Meeting – ​04/29/2019 
Item No. 6.01 

Page 1 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

RESOLUTION ​: ADOPTION OF BOARD POLICY 
Background 

 
The IASB Policy Reference Manual provides a system for regular updating of policies to ensure 
legal compliance and provides cross-referencing of related policies and the legal references. 
Every policy is reviewed at least once every five years or as a result of state or federal, Illinois 
School Code, or Illinois School Board of Education regulation or rule changes. The administration 
also makes recommendations for policy revisions as needed. Additionally, the Board is required by 
School Code to review select policies either annually or biennially.  
 
Motion made by ​_____________________​, seconded by ​____________________​ to adopt 
the following resolution: 

 
WHEREAS on the 29th day of April 29, 2019, the Board of Education reviewed policy changes 
recommended in the Illinois Association of School Boards Press Update #100 for the policies 
listed below:  

 
Policy Changes Recommended in Press Update #100 

Policy - 220 ​ - Powers and Duties of the Board of Education; Indemnification  

Policy - 4100 ​ - Insurance Management 

Policy - 4110 ​- Transportation 

Policy - 4150 ​- Facility Management and Building Programs 

Policy - 4160 ​ - Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds 

Policy - 4190 (*NEW)​ - Targeted School Violence Prevention Program 

Policy - 5330 ​ - Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves, IMRF Service 
Credit Plan 

Policy - 615 ​ - School Accountability 

 

Recommendation For 5-Year Review  

Policy - 240 ​  - Board Member Qualifications  

Policy - 250 ​  - School Board Member Term of Office 
Policy - 260 ​- Board Member Removal from Office 

Policy - 430 ​ - Revenue and Investments 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/11j3i8ghASjUmOgO92Z5SYRybCv0fiPg6/view?usp=sharing
https://doc-0c-4c-apps-viewer.googleusercontent.com/viewer/secure/pdf/cf6a3he4e67mlh779g9e1sv474tq9sob/bguo0cqljk0ns00oljrugk3t6f5culb3/1556122050000/drive/11021393704295337879/ACFrOgADWbaOIeZie4m7xDQVMmgyXPCSblARngZ76Md1_euE6MM9cNZlwL7loOlmyiCuwh0WIHYsSGrgOTNPJG5wqkX3EYShp-bxc1tm3O2Y_FfBbTA8wjSwMICGJBY=?print=true
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1q7oxgYog5nzl4tJWmPtOBIhUps9IbsTy/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1vuzRFdPsMDdNq5sJFkSaz-DEVj5Gy1ep/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10oKK6rQbXBukyNilLbpH_JByC9qrFMbj/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eRNDdRdcTDCmz9I-q2t7oAyV30ptC856/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1IjDJa4Mfpg3T8FptaMo8XSLJy7u0Tz4R/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1H-ZhjMGx3ADz7sKhqmpNP-N0xvHJx05V/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1e8EBLhQYmNHD4EURJ9nRAUK48ei-3noc/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/13VexXdNZa-TPuOx7FlLAvnxbLt-0ympOW_ZTFSVkoUM/edit
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qiCQta0mzvQzqpuu8NTB23jmsz803Cod/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10ZzIRpiMgM9C26QMcZTUhYBbNDXIHzqy/view?usp=sharing


 
 
 

Board Meeting – ​04/29/2019 
Item No. 6.01 

Page 2 

Policy-665 ​ - Student Social and Emotional Development 

Policy - 7185 ​ - Teen Dating Violence Prohibited 

Policy - 895 ​ - Parental Involvement 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Community Consolidated School District 59           
Board of Education approves the recommended updates to the Community Consolidated           
School District 59 Board of Education Policy Manual. 
 
ADOPTED this 29th day of April 2019, by a roll call vote as follows: 
 

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rFVKuOH_hsQDIovBa7vb7lGa5iyeA9Jc/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Fcja1MTpdTqBvCz1LMWUqTvAi6-FepUv/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1kbAraBC7UnTyVL5JSSe1E_GArmbcpt3K/view?usp=sharing


 
 
 

Board Meeting – ​04/29/2019 
Item No. 6.02 

Page 1 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

RESOLUTION ​: ADOPTION OF BOARD POLICY 
Background 
Administration and Board recommendations for policy changes were discussed at the April 15, 
2019 Board of Education Meeting. 

 
Motion made by ​_____________________​, seconded by ​____________________​ to adopt 
the following resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education             
approves the recommended updates to the Community Consolidated School District 59           
Board of Education Policy Manual. 
 
a. Policy - 2:140 ​Communications To and From the Board 
b.  ​Policy - 2100 ​ Board Member Conflict of Interest 

c.​  ​Policy - 7300 ​ - Extracurricular Athletics 

d.  ​Policy - 830 ​ - Visitors to and Conduct on School Property 
 
ADOPTED this 29th day of April 2019, by a roll call vote as follows: 
 

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1cXl9dmXFdyeCBzzwbNkbyDazI75RblRjcS0jTOGFSnQ/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/13iwElqhHUpe5MbIdtMWw-Nx_sJH5CyuFyE8Qz-WtsQY/edit#
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1XCCLcbZKoq41kDoODyDB2qdLF2vfpzd7IHoAYnpXuW0/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0BxVjOCMqGHrldmtGRnVGNW0tbUh3X2FZUloxenRRXzFMcF9r/view?usp=sharing


 
 
 

Board Meeting – ​04/29/2019 
Item No. 6.02 

Page 2 

 



                                                                                   Board Meeting – ​04/29/19 
Item No. 6.03 

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
 
RESOLUTION: RIDGE FAMILY CENTER FOR LEARNING 

INTER-SESSION PROGRAMMING 
 
 
Background 
As the Ridge Family Center for Learning operates on a unique school calendar, an 
Inter-Session Program is offered to elementary students as an option and on a fee basis 
only. The fees are intended to cover the direct operating costs of the programming 
provided.  The 2019/20 Ridge balanced calendar provides for two inter-sessions: 1) 
September 30 - October 9 2019 (8 days); and 2) March 30 - April 3, 2020 (5 days).  
This resolution authorizes the continuation of the inter-session and the fees to be 
charged to families who choose to participate. The Board of Education will be asked to 
approve the following fee arrangements for 2019/20: 

Proposed 2019/20​             ​2018/19 
Sep/Oct Inter-session (8 days) $160 (8 days) $160 
Mar/Apr Inter-session (5 days) $100 (5 days) $100 

 
Recommendation 
Approval 

Resolution 
Motion made by __________________, seconded by__________________to adopt the 
following resolution: 

 
 
WHEREAS​, the 2019/20 balanced calendar for the Ridge Family Center for 
Learning Elementary Program provides time during the school year for two 
inter-sessions: 1) September 30 - October 9, 2019 (8 days); and 2) March 30 - 
April 3, 2020 (5 days); 
WHEREAS​, attendance at an inter-session is an addition to the school year 
calendar and families are required to pay a fee to participate in an inter-session; 
 
 
 
 

 
 



                                                                                   Board Meeting – ​04/29/19 
Item No. 6.03 

Page 2 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED ​, that the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education approve the following fee arrangements at 
the Ridge Family Center for Learning for the 2019/20 school year: 

 
Sep/Oct Inter-session  (8 days) $160   
Mar/Apr Inter-session (5 days) $100  
 

Adopted this 29th day of April 2019, by the following roll call vote: 

          



 
 

 
   Board Meeting– ​4/29/19 

Item No. 6.04 

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
 
RESOLUTION​: FOOD SERVICE CONTRACT RENEWAL FOR 2019/20 LUNCH 

AND BREAKFAST PROGRAMS  
 
Background 
School year 2019-20 represents the third renewal for the District’s food service 
management company, Organic Life.  State law allows the District to renew a contract 
four times before a District is required to bid the service.  The current Contract was 
approved by the Board of Education on May 29, 2018 effective for 2018-19 (Year 3). 
The District will be required to bid food service effective for the 2021-22 school year; 
however, a bid will be necessary should there be an operational change in the 
program. 
 
No operational changes have been requested for the 2019-20 school year for the 
existing lunch program.  The reimbursable lunch and the a la carte equivalent rates will 
increase from $2.8668 to $2.9212 per meal.  This increase is based on the allowable 
CPI of 1.9%.  There is no annual management fee for lunch or the junior high a la carte 
program. 
 
Regarding the breakfast program, the Childhood Hunger Relief Act, PA093-1086 
requires schools that have at least 40% of students eligible for free or reduced-price 
lunches to offer a school breakfast program.  In 2019-20, all District 59 schools will 
continue to offer breakfast programs. 
 
The per meal rates for the breakfast program will increase from $1.2509 to $1.2746. 
There is no annual management fee for breakfast.  
 
Public Act 99-0850 is a breakfast requirement that was implemented July 1, 2017. 
This law requires every public school in which at least 70 percent of the students were 
eligible for free or reduced-price lunches in October of the preceding year to operate a 
Breakfast After the Bell Program. Breakfast After the Bell means breakfast is provided 
to children after the instructional day has officially begun and does not prohibit schools 
from also providing breakfast before the instructional day begins. 
 
Starting in 2017-18 Byrd, John Jay and Rupley implemented a Breakfast After the Bell 
program.  The same three schools implemented the program in 2018-19 and will 
continue Breakfast After the Bell in 2019-20. 
 
Organic Life continues to be a valuable partner in offering quality school nutrition 
programs to our students.  The District recommends renewal at the proposed rates.  
 

 



 
 
 

   Board Meeting– ​4/29/19 
Item No. 6.04 

Page 2  

 
 

Summary of Proposed Meal Rates 
 

  18/19  19/20 

Reimbursable Lunches  $2.8668  $2.9212 

Management Fee per Lunch  $0.00  $0.00​00 

A la Carte Equivalent Fee  $2.8668  $2.9212 

A la Carte Management Fee  $0.00  $0.00​00 

Reimbursable Breakfast  $1.2509  $1.2746 

Management Fee per Breakfast  $0.00  $0.00​00 

 
Recommendation 
Approval 
 
Resolution 
Motion made by ____________________ , seconded by _________________ to adopt the 
following resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT​ on the 29th day of April, 2019 the Community Consolidated 
School District 59 Board of Education renew the contract with Organic Life, 430 W. 
Erie St. Suite 403, Chicago, Illinois to provide meals for the 2019-20 school year at 
the following rates: 
 

Reimbursable Lunches  $2.9212 

Management Fee per Lunch  $0.00​00 

A la Carte Equivalent Fee  $2.9212 

A la Carte Management Fee  $0.00​00 

Reimbursable Breakfast  $1.2746 

Management Fee per Breakfast  $0.00​00 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

   Board Meeting– ​4/29/19 
Item No. 6.04 

Page 3  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 



 
 

Board Meeting - ​4/29/19 
    ​ ​Item No. 6.05 

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
 
RESOLUTION​: APPROVAL OF DISTRICT-WIDE COPIER LEASE SOLUTION 
 
 
Background 
The District currently leases a total of 55 Multi-Function Devices and is in the final year 
of a three-year contract with Konica Minolta.  There are three (3) devices at each school 
which are located in the main office (color), the Learning Resource Center (LRC) (color) 
and the teacher workroom (B&W). The Early Learning Center houses one device in the 
main office and one in the teacher workroom and the devices at the Administration 
Center are located strategically throughout the building and assigned to seven (7) 
departments.  All printers across the District default to B&W, with the option to select 
color if necessary. 
 
Prior to determining the direction for this purchase, information was gathered through 
satisfaction surveys administered to building principals, LRC techs, office managers, 
and administration building staff. Overall, responses showed a high level of satisfaction 
with the devices and responsiveness of maintenance technicians while also illustrating 
the need for increased copy speed and paper capacity in the LRCs. 
 
Konica Minolta extended the opportunity to participate in a proprietary ​One Rate 

Program ​through Sourcewell Cooperative Purchasing.  The program eliminates per 
copy costs and charges a fixed monthly rate which includes unlimited printing in both 
black and white and color. 
 
Rates for both 36-month and 48-month contracts were proposed.  After a review of the 
District’s experiences, it was determined that a 36-month contract would improve overall 
productivity and satisfaction.  In addition, the shorter time frame permits the District to 
be more flexible as print needs continue to change.  By implementing the Konica 
Minolta’s ​One Rate Program​ recommended solution for 36 months, the District will 
receive new and improved equipment while cutting operating costs by over 13%. 
 
Konica Minolta’s proposed solution meets the needs of the District’s by upgrading the 
devices in the LRCs to faster machines with larger capacity paper trays.  In addition, 
staplers would be added to each school office, one device in the Administration Building 
would be eliminated and the speed of the copier in the mailroom would be increased to 
accommodate large print jobs.  The proposal includes all equipment, training, toner, 
staples, delivery, maintenance and repair and all parts and supplies are guaranteed to 
be originally manufactured equipment throughout the duration of the contract. 
 
 



 
 

Board Meeting - ​4/29/19 
    ​ ​Item No. 6.05 

Page 2 
 
 
After the District’s experience for the past three (3) years, it was determined that Konica 
Minolta would not only be the best financial option but would also be the best strategic 
partner as the District continues to evaluate and address copy and print needs.  It is 
therefore recommended that the Board of Education approve a three-year lease and 
maintenance agreement with Konica Minolta, 1701 W. Golf Road, Rolling Meadows, IL 
60008 for 54 multi-functional devices for a monthly rate of $23,905.00 for all devices. 
The installation and implementation will be scheduled to begin on July 1, 2019. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Approval 
 
 
Resolution 
 
Motion made by ​                 __________________, ​ seconded by​         ___________ ​to 
adopt the following resolution: 
 
 

WHEREAS ​ Konica Minolta has provided high performing copier equipment and 
quality technology support and services; 
 
WHEREAS ​ a proposal was received from Konica Minolta providing a print 
solution for School District 59’s schools and administration building at a 
significant savings; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED​, on the 29th day of April 2019, the Board 
of Education of Community Consolidated School District 59 approve the leasing 
of 54 multi-functional devices from Konica Minolta for a three-year lease and 
maintenance agreement for a monthly rate of ​$23,905​.  
 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Board Meeting -​ 4/29/19 

    ​ ​Item No. 6.05 
Page 3 

 

 

 

 



 



COST ANAYLSIS 
 



 



 

  
 
                      Board Meeting - ​4/29/19  
                              Item No. �.0� 

 
 

COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 
Elk Grove Township Schools 

 
RESOLUTION ​: APPROVAL OF THREE-YEAR CONTRACT FOR NATURAL GAS  
 
Background 
The current contract for natural gas expires on June 30, 2019. A Request For Proposal               
(RFP) was sent to eight providers on March 14, 2019. On March 29, 2019, the District                
received three responses. 
 
Natural gas market prices are based on the the assumption that gas will be delivered to the                 
Henry Hub, a large node in the national natural gas pipeline. An adjustment, called the basis,                
is then made to reflect the difference in cost between delivering gas to the Henry Hub and to                  
District 59’s schools. This adjustment can be an additional charge or a credit. Both the price                
of gas and the basis are tied to the market prices of the National Gas Intelligence (NGI) and                  
New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX). 
 
To help prevent large cost variances created by the fluctuating market, the District asked              
vendors to provide fixed pricing for part or all of the natural gas costs. Option 1 requested                 
fixed pricing for basis and 50% of the District’s anticipated natural gas supply. The remaining               
50% would float with the market pricing. Option 2 requested fixed pricing for basis and 100%                
of the District’s anticipated natural gas supply. Under both options, the District will “own” any               
natural gas purchased but not used, allowing the District to bank unused natural gas in               
anticipation of future natural gas price increases.  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the quote provided by Centerpoint              
Energy for Option 1 at a fixed rate of -$0.006 per therm basis and $0.269 per therm for 50%                   
of the District’s anticipated usage for 36 months. This combination of fixed and floating rates               
protects the District from extreme price variances while also taking advantage of price drops.              
Since Centerpoint is our current provider, the District would not need to incur any additional               
expenses for changing providers. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Approval 
 
Resolution 
Motion was made by ___________________, seconded by ______________, to adopt the           
following resolution: 
 
 

   



 

Board Meeting - ​4/29/19 
                  Item No. �.0� 
                            ​Page 2 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT on the 29th day of April, 2019 the Community Consolidated School               
District 59 Board of Education approve Option 1 for a 36 month contract with Centerpoint               
Energy to provide the District with natural gas at a fixed rate of -$0.006 per therm basis and                  
$0.269 per therm for 50% of the District’s anticipated usage with the District owning its               
storage.  

 
 
 

The proposal summary sheet is attached. 
  
 

  
 
 
 
 



Board of Education and Administrative Offices
1001 Liecester Road, Elk Grove Village, IL 60007

Natural Gas RFP Tabulation Form
FY 2020 - 2022

Annual Volume:

OPTION 1
50% Basis

50% Fixed (Basis & Nymex)
OPTION 2

100% Fixed (Basis & Nymex)

370,500
CenterPoint Constellation Direct Energy CenterPoint Constellation Direct Energy

NGI INDEX PLUS ADDER $0.00100 $0.00205

No Proposal

$0.00100 $0.00205 $0.00000

BASIS -$0.00600 $0.00722 $0.00000 $0.00722 $0.20500

FIXED (Basis & Nymex) $0.26900 $0.29210 $0.26900 $0.29210 $3.06700

TRUE-UP PRICE FOR OVER 
USAGE $0.001 $0.015 $0.001 $0.015 $0.010

TRUE-UP PRICE FOR 
UNDER USAGE -$0.002 -$0.005 -$0.002 -$0.005 -$0.050

ALL OTHER FEES: 
ITEMIZED $1,920.00 $566.40 $1,920.00 $566.40

CREDIT TO OFFSET 
CHANGE IN PROVIDER 
COSTS

-$3,705.00 -$3,705.00

ANNUAL INDEX PLUS 
ADDER $370.50 $759.53 $370.50 $759.53 $0.00

ANNUAL BASIS -$1,111.50 $1,337.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ANNUAL FIXED $99,664.50 $108,223.05 $99,664.50 $108,223.05 $1,136,323.50

ANNUAL FEES (+) & 
CREDITS (-) $1,920.00 -$3,138.60 $1,920.00 -$3,138.60

ANNUAL TOTAL (1ST YEAR) $100,843.50 $107,181.48 $101,955.00 $105,843.98 $1,136,323.50

 



 







 
  

Board Meeting – ​04/29/2019 
Item No.- ​9.0 

Page 1 
 

 
COMMUNITY CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT 59 

Elk Grove Township Schools 
 
RESOLUTION ​: ADJOURN THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF​ ​EDUCATION 
 

 
Time: ______________________ 
 
 
______________________ made a motion, seconded by ​____________________​ to adopt the 
following resolution: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT​  the 29th day of April, 2019 is the Sine Die adjournment date for 
the current Community Consolidated School District 59 Board of Education.  

 


